
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       

 

 

 

 

 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Thursday, October 5, 2017 – 3:00 p.m. 

Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom 

 

Table of Contents 

 

 

 

(1) Agenda         Pages 2-3   

                

(2) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 

  Meeting of September 7, 2017     Pages 4-13   

             

(3) Gifts and Grants        Pages 14-15   

                

(4) Minutes of the September 7, 2017 Student Outcomes Committee  Pages 16-80    

 

(5) Minutes of the September 15, 2017 Real Estate Committee   Pages 81-82 

 

(6) Minutes of the September 29, 2017 Audit Committee   Pages 83-165 

  

 

 

 

########## 

 

1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                      MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

AGENDA 

Thursday, October 5, 2017 – 3:00 p.m. 

Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 

 

 

(1) Meeting Called to Order 

 

(2) Public Comment 

 

(3) Report of the Student Outcomes Committee 

 

(4) Report of the Real Estate Committee 

  

(a) Facilities Master Plan      (A) 

 

(5) Report of the Business Affairs Committee 

 

(6) Report of the Audit Committee 

 

(a) 2016-17 Financial Statements     (A) 

 

(7) Consent Agenda   

 

(a) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 

Meeting of September 7, 2017 

(b) Gifts and Grants 

(c) Photographic Imaging Program Audit 

  

(8) Report of the Chair 

 

(9) Foundation Report 

 

(10) Report of the President 

 

(11) New Business 

 

(12) Next Meeting:   Thursday, November 2, 2017 – 3:00 p.m. 

      Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 

 

(13) Executive Session 

 

2



 

Future Committee Meetings: 

 

Student Outcomes:    Thursday, November 2, 2017 

      1:30 p.m. – M2-34  

 

Business Affairs:    Wednesday, October 18, 2017 

      10:00 a.m. – Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom 

        

 

 

Upcoming Events 

 

 Board of Trustees Retreat   Friday, November 17, 2017 

       8:00 a.m. – 2:30 p.m. 

       Center for Business and Industry Building 

       1735 Callowhill Streets 

       Room C2-5      

  

  

 

 

 

                                                         ################## 

3



 
 

COMMUNITY COLLEGE OF PHILADELPHIA 

Proceedings of the Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

Thursday, September 7, 2017– 3:00 p.m.  

 

 

Present: Mr. White, presiding; Mr. Armbrister, Mr. Bergheiser, Ms. Biemiller, Ms. 

Fulmore-Townsend, Ms. Hernández Vélez, Ms. Horstmann,  Mr. Martz, Ms. 

McPherson, Dr. Rényi, Representative Roebuck, Ms. Sidhu, Mr. Soileau, Ms. 

Tsai, Dr. Generals, Ms. de Fries, Ms. Di Gregorio, Mr. Eapen, Dr. Gay, Dr. 

Hirsch, Ms. Hurst, Mr. Murphy, and Ms. Zellers 

 

(1) Executive Session 

 

The Executive Session was devoted to a discussion of labor, legal matters and personnel 

matters. 

 

(2) Meeting Called to Order 

 

Mr. White called the meeting to order. 

 

(3) Report of the Business Affairs Committee 

 

Ms. Biemiller reported that the Business Affairs Committee had met on August 23, 2017. 

She noted that a number of capital projects were approved as well as the Revised College 

Policies and Procedures Memorandum No. 201 – Purchases and Contracts Requiring Specific 

Board Authorization.  Ms. Biemiller stated that the initial impetus for the change was an internal 

audit related to contracts that require Board approval.  She stated that staff suggested changes to 

better clarify approval procedures, including for contract extensions and renewals.  Ms. Biemiller 

stated that the Committee had suggested that staff also increase the value of purchases requiring 

Board approval.   

 

(3a) Resolution on One-Time Retirement Incentive 

 

 Ms. Biemiller presented the following Resolution on One-Time Retirement Incentive.  

She noted a change that had been made to the Resolution which had been sent with the Board 

packet to clarify that employees are only eligible for one retirement incentive from the College: 

 

WHEREAS, on August 23, 2017, the Business Affairs Committee of the Board of 

Trustees approved on a one-time basis a retirement incentive to be offered to full-time 

employees, including full-time faculty, classified staff, confidential staff, and administrators, 

who as of January 1, 2018 attained fifteen years of full-time service and sixty-five (65) years of 

age;  

4



WHEREAS, after consideration of various issues related to the date of attainment of the 

age and years of service requirement and after representatives from the College met with the 

Faculty & Staff Federation of the Community College of Philadelphia who represent faculty and 

classified employees who would be eligible for the retirement incentive, the Business Affairs 

Committee proposed to revise the retirement incentive to offer the retirement incentive to full-

time faculty who as of August 31, 2018 have attained fifteen years of full- time service and sixty-

five (65) years of age, and to administrators, classified, and confidential staff who as of June 30, 

2018 have attained fifteen years of full-time service and sixty-five (65) years of age;  

NOW THEREFORE, on this 7th day of September, 2017, the Board of Trustees hereby 

approves the following one-time retirement incentive:   

The College will offer the following, on a one-time basis, separate and distinct from the 

retirement incentive provided in Article XIII, A., (11) (a) in the Full-time Faculty Collective 

Bargaining Agreement:  (a) full-time faculty  who, by the end of the 2017-18 academic year (i.e. 

August 31, 2018), will reach sixty-five (65) years of age, with fifteen (15) years of full-time 

service at the College (as a full-time faculty member, visiting lecturer, or as a classified, 

confidential, or administrative employee, including years on unpaid leave or on long-term 

disability), may give notice by January 31, 2018 to retire effective August 31, 2018; (b) the 

Board agrees to pay a retirement incentive to all such full-time faculty who elect this option; (c) 

the incentive will be 25% of the Employee’s full annual base salary, with an additional bonus of 

$5,000 if the option is selected by October 31, 2017, a bonus of $4,000 if the option is selected 

by November 30, 2017, a bonus of $3,000 if the option is selected by December 31, 2017, or a 

bonus of $2,000 if the option is selected by January 31, 2018; (d) the College may request a 

postponement of an full-time faculty’s retirement under the terms of this provision until after the 

end of the Fall 2018 semester if the retirement would unreasonably interfere with a specific 

College program; and 

The College will offer, on a one-time basis, the following separate and distinct from the 

retirement incentive provided in Article XV, 5. (a).  in the classified  collective bargaining 

agreement and/or any other retirement incentive available to administrators and confidential 

employees: (a) a full-time administrator, full—time confidential employee, or full-time classified 

employee who, by June 30, 2018 will reach sixty-five (65) years of age, with fifteen (15) years of 

full-time service at the College (as a full-time faculty member, visiting lecturer, or as a classified, 

confidential, or administrative employee, including years on unpaid leave or on long-term 

disability), may give notice by January 31, 2018 to retire no later than June 30, 2018 (provided 

however, the employee must attain sixty-five (65) years of age and fifteen years of full-time 

service by his/her effective retirement date); (b) the Board agrees to pay a retirement incentive to 

all such employees who elect the option; (c) the incentive will be 25% of the Employee’s full 

annualized base compensation, with an additional bonus of $5,000 if the option is selected by 

October 31, 2017, a bonus of $4,000 if the option is selected by November 30, 2017, a bonus of 

$3,000 if the option is selected by December 31, 2017, or a bonus of $2,000 if the option is 

selected by January 31, 2018; (d) the College may request a postponement of an Employee’s 

5



retirement under the terms of this provision until December 31, 2018 if the retirement would 

unreasonably interfere with a specific College program. 

By way of clarification, all such employees are only eligible for one retirement incentive offer 

from the College. 

 Ms. Biemiller moved, with Mr. Martz seconding, that the Board approve the above 

Resolution on the One-Time Retirement Incentive.  The motion carried unanimously. 

(4) Report of the Student Outcomes Committee 

 

Dr. Rényi reported that the Committee reviewed and approved the Photographic Imaging 

Program Audit.  She stated that the Audit will be presented for Board approval at the October 5, 

2017 Board meeting. 

 

Dr. Rényi reported that Dr. Gay had provided an excellent presentation on the 

achievements of the Strategic Initiatives area with particular emphasis on the Middle College. 

 

Dr. Rényi reported that the Committee had also discussed the PASSHE report conducted 

by the National Center on Higher Education Management Systems.  She stated that the 

Committee hoped to support the College and other community colleges across the State by 

taking a much more proactive approach to the importance of economic development. 

 

(5) Consent Agenda 

 

Mr. White presented the following Consent Agenda for Board approval: 

 

(a) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 

Meeting of June 1, 2017 

(b) Gifts and Grants 

(c) Academic Program Review-Liberal Arts A.A. Degree 

(d) Hobsons’ Starfish Student Degree Planning and Predictive Analytics Reporting 

(e) RFP #9990 Mint Stair Replacement 

(f) RFP #9972 Security System Upgrades 

(g) RFP #9978 ESS Library Suite; Winnet, Bursar Counter 

(h) RFP #9995 Telecommunications Service Provider 

(i) 2017-18 Property and Casualty Insurance Renewal Package 

(j) Revised College Policies and Procedures Memorandum No. 202 – Purchases 

and Contracts Requiring Specific Board Authorization  

 

Ms. Hernández Vélez moved, with Mr. Armbrister seconding, that the Board approve the 

Consent Agenda. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

 

6



 

 

(6) Report of the Nominating Committee for Board Officers 

 

Ms. Hernández Vélez, chair of the Nominating Committee for Board Officers, reported 

that the Committee had met and was recommending the following slate of Board Officers for 

2017-18: 

 

   Mr. Jeremiah White   Chair 

   Ms. Suzanne Biemiller  Vice Chair 

   Representative James Roebuck Vice Chair 

   Ms. Mary Horstmann   Secretary 

 

 Mr. White asked if there were any additional nominations the Board wished to make.  

There being none, Mr. Armbrister moved, with Judge Tsai, seconding, that nominations be 

closed.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

 After discussion, Ms. Hernández moved, with Mr. Armbrister seconding, that the Board 

approve the above slate of Board Officers for 2017-18.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

 Mr. White thanked the Board for their confidence in reappointing him as Chair of the 

Board. 

 

(7) Report of the Chair 

 

On behalf of the Board of Trustees, Mr. White expressed condolences to Ms. McPherson 

on the passing of her sister, Jeanne. 

 

Mr. White reported that he, Dr. Generals, and Ms. McPherson are scheduled to attend the 

Association of Community College Trustees Leadership Congress September 25-28, 2017 in Las 

Vegas, Nevada.  He stated that he is scheduled to do a workshop on Board relations at the 

Congress. 

 

Mr. White thanked Ms. Hernández Vélez for delivering greetings on behalf of the Board 

at the opening session of Professional Development Week on August 28, 2017. 

 

Mr. White reminded members of the Board of the Commission for Community Colleges 

Southeast Regional Trustees meeting scheduled for Thursday, November 16, 2017, 5:30 p.m. – 

8:00 p.m. at Montgomery County Community College.  Dr. Rényi stated that she is planning to 

attend the meeting. 

 

(8) Foundation Report 

 

Mr. Murphy reported that the following two gifts were received by the Foundation after 

the Gifts and Grants report was sent to the Board with their Board meeting packet: 

 

7



 An estate gift of $400,000 for scholarships from a donor who supported Early 

Childhood Education scholarships at the College during his lifetime; and 

 

 A gift of $240,000 in support of an LGBTQ Center that is the subject of the below 

Resolution.  Mr. Murphy noted that the principals for this gift wish to remain 

anonymous. 

 

(8a) Resolution on MarcDavid LGBTQ Center 

 

 Mr. Murphy presented the following Resolution for Board approval: 

 

WHEREAS, on August 29, 2017, the MarcDavid Foundation entered a Gift Agreement 

with the Community College of Philadelphia Foundation and the Community College of 

Philadelphia (the “College”) providing that the MarcDavid Foundation will make a 

donation in the amount of $240,000 to allow the College to establish a LGBTQ Center 

with the objective of supporting students who identify as Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, 

Transgender, or who may be experiencing fluidity in gender identity and prefer to be 

recognized as Queer or Questioning, and their allies and to provide a safe space for all 

members of the College community;  

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the College’s Naming Policy and the terms of the Gift 

Agreement, the College desires to properly recognize the generosity of the MarcDavid 

Foundation;  

 

NOW THEREFORE, on this 7th day of September, 2017, the Board of Trustees hereby 

resolves that in accordance with the terms of the Gift Agreement the College shall name 

the LGBTQ Center, “The MarcDavid LGBTQ Center.” 

 

 Ms. Hernández moved, with Ms. Biemiller seconding, that the Board approve the above 

Resolution.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

(9) Report of the President 

 

Dr. Generals called attention to his memorandum in the Board folder regarding his 

activities during the months of June, July, and August and summarized the highlights. 

 

On behalf of the College family, Dr. Generals expressed his condolences to Ms. 

McPherson on the passing of her sister Jeanne. 

 

(9a) Enrollment 

 

 Dr. Generals reported the first day of class for the fall semester was September 5.  He 

stated that fall enrollment is down.  Dr. Generals stated that staff are working hard to market the 

10-week session. 

 

 

8



 

(9b) Washington Monthly Article 

 

 Dr. Generals called the Board’s attention to an article on innovative colleges for adult 

learners in the Washington Monthly.  He stated that CCP’s Apprenticeship Program in Early 

Childhood Education with Local 1199C had been cited as a national model.   

 

(9c) Meetings with Comcast 

 

 Dr. Generals thanked Mr. Soileau for his help in connecting the College with Comcast by 

scheduling a number of meetings and follow up with key offices at Comcast.  He stated that this 

is the beginning of a solid relationship with Comcast and wanted to thank Mr. Soileau publicly 

for facilitating the meetings. 

 

(9d) Strategic Plan 

 

 Dr. Generals called the Board’s attention to a copy of the Strategic Plan in their Board 

folder.  He stated that the goals and objectives of the Plan will be revisited and discussed at the 

November 17, 2017 Board Retreat. 

 

(9e) College Events 

 

 Dr. Generals called attention to a list of College events scheduled during the month of 

September.  Dr. Generals reminded members of the Board of the Demolition Party for The 

Hamilton scheduled for Tuesday, September 12, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. 

  

(10) New Business 

 

There was no new business discussed. 

(11) Public Comment 

 

Ms. Marissa Johnson Valenzuela, faculty member in the English department, presented 

her concerns regarding contract negotiations and proposals.  

 

(12) Next Meeting 

 

The next meeting of the Board of Trustees is scheduled for Thursday, October 5, 2017 at 

3:00 p.m. in the Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 4:25 p.m. 

9



 
 

 

COMMUNITY COLLEGE OF PHILADELPHIA 

Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

Thursday, September 7, 2017– 3:00 p.m.  

MINUTES OF DECISIONS AND RESOLUTIONS 

 

 

Present: Mr. White, presiding; Mr. Armbrister, Mr. Bergheiser, Ms. Biemiller, Ms. 

Fulmore-Townsend, Ms. Hernández Vélez, Ms. Horstmann,  Mr. Martz, Ms. 

McPherson, Dr. Rényi, Representative Roebuck, Ms. Sidhu, Mr. Soileau, Ms. 

Tsai, Dr. Generals, Ms. de Fries, Ms. Di Gregorio, Mr. Eapen, Dr. Gay, Dr. 

Hirsch, Ms. Hurst, Mr. Murphy, and Ms. Zellers 

 

(1) Executive Session 

 

The Executive Session was devoted to a discussion of labor, legal matters and personnel 

matters. 

 

(2) Meeting Called to Order 

 

Mr. White called the meeting to order. 

 

(3) Report of the Business Affairs Committee 

 

The Business Affairs Committee met on August 23, 2017.  

 

(3a) Resolution on One-Time Retirement Incentive 

. 

 The Board approved the One-Time Retirement Incentive Resolution. 

(4) Report of the Student Outcomes Committee 

 

 The Committee approved the Photographic Imaging Program Audit.  The Audit will be 

presented for Board approval at the October 5, 2017 Board meeting. 

 

The Committee discussed the PASSHE report conducted by the National Center on 

Higher Education Management Systems.   

 

(5) Consent Agenda 

 

The Board approved the following Consent Agenda: 

 

(a) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 

Meeting of June 1, 2017 

(b) Gifts and Grants 

10



(c) Academic Program Review-Liberal Arts A.A. Degree 

(d) Hobsons’ Starfish Student Degree Planning and Predictive Analytics Reporting 

(e) RFP #9990 Mint Stair Replacement 

(f) RFP #9972 Security System Upgrades 

(g) RFP #9978 ESS Library Suite, Winnet, Bursar Counter 

(h) RFP #9995 Telecommunications Service Provider 

(i) 2017-18 Property and Casualty Insurance Renewal Package 

(j) Revised College Policies and Procedures Memorandum No. 202 – Purchases 

and contracts Requiring Specific Board Authorization  

 

(6) Report of the Nominating Committee for Board Officers 

 

The Board approved the following slate of Board Officers for 2017-18: 

 

   Jeremiah White   Chair 

   Suzanne Biemiller   Vice Chair 

   Representative James Roebuck Vice Chair 

   Mary Horstmann   Secretary 

 

(7) Report of the Chair 

 

The Board expressed their condolences to Ms. McPherson on the passing of her sister, 

Jeanne. 

 

Dr. Generals, Mr. White, and Ms. McPherson are scheduled to attend the Association of 

Community College Trustees Leadership Congress September 25-28, 2017 in Las Vegas, 

Nevada.  

 

The Commission for Community Colleges Southeast Regional Trustees meeting 

scheduled for Thursday, November 16, 2017, 5:30 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. at Montgomery County 

Community College.   

 

(8) Foundation Report 

 

The following two gifts were received by the Foundation after the Gifts and Grants report 

was sent to the Board with their Board meeting packet: 

 

 An estate gift of $400,000 for scholarships from a donor who supported Early 

Childhood Education scholarships at the College during his lifetime; and 

 

 A gift of $240,000 in support of an LGBTQ Center that is the subject of the below 

Resolution.  Mr. Murphy noted that the principals for this gift wish to remain 

anonymous. 

 

 

 

11



 

(8a) Resolution on MarcDavid LGBTQ Center 

 

The Board approved the Resolution the naming of The MarcDavid LGBTQ Center. 

 

(9) Report of the President 

 

Dr. Generals called attention to his memorandum in the Board folder regarding his 

activities during the months of June, July, and August and summarized the highlights. 

 

On behalf of the College family, Dr. Generals expressed his condolences to Ms. 

McPherson on the passing of her sister, Jeanne. 

 

(9a) Enrollment 

 

 The fall semester began on September 5.  Fall enrollment is down. Staff are working hard 

to market the 10-week session. 

 

(9b) Washington Monthly Article    

 

 Dr. Generals called the Board’s attention to an article in their Board folder from the 

Washington Monthly on innovative colleges for adult learners.  

 

(9c) Meeting with Comcast   

 

 Dr. Generals thanked Mr. Soileau for his help in connecting the College with Comcast by 

scheduling a number of meetings and follow ups with key offices at Comcast.   

 

(9d) Strategic Plan 

 

 Dr. Generals called the Board’s attention to a copy of the Strategic Plan in their Board 

folder.  He stated that the goals and objectives of the Plan will be revisited and discussed at the 

November 17, 2017 Board Retreat. 

 

(9e) College Events 

 

 Dr. Generals called attention to a list of College events scheduled during the month of 

September.   

 

Dr. Generals reminded members of the Board of the Demolition Party for The Hamilton 

scheduled for Tuesday, September 12, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. 

 

(10) New Business 

 

There was no new business discussed. 

  

12



 

(11) Public Comment  

 

 Ms. Marissa Johnson Valenzuela, faculty member in the English Department, presented 

her concerns regarding contract negotiations and proposals. 

 

(12) Next Meeting 

 

The next meeting of the Board of Trustees is scheduled for Thursday, October 5, 2017 at 

3:00 p.m. in the Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 4:25 p.m. 

13



14



15



 

STUDENT OUTCOMES COMMITTEE OF THE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
MINUTES 

 
Thursday, September 7, 2017 

1:30 p.m. 
Conference Room M2-34 

 
Presiding:  Dr. Rényi 
 
Present:  Mr. Armbrister, Ms. Fulmore-Townsend, Ms. de Fries, Dr. Gay, Dr. Generals, 

Ms. Hernadnez Velez, Dr. Hirsch, Ms. McPherson, Dr. Roberts, Ms. Zellers 
 
Guest:  Dr. Sweet 
 
 (1) Executive Session 
 

A personnel matter was discussed.  
 
(2) Public Session 
 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of June 1, 2017 
 
The minutes were accepted unanimously.  

 
(b) Photographic Imaging Program Audit Follow-Up Decision 

 
Drs. Generals and Hirsch had conferred on the Photographic Imaging program audit 
follow up. A concern had been the capital budget; the budget was able to be adjusted 
so that it was affordable while meeting students’ needs. The program has made 
progress and continues to serve multiple student populations. 
 
Action: The Student Outcomes Committee unanimously recommends that the 
Board approve the program for five years and encourage the expansion of 
internships and partnering with businesses to help defray the costs of 
equipment. 

 
 

(c) Office of Strategic Initiatives and Chief of Staff Report 
 

Dr. Gay provided the Committee with a condensed report of 2016-17 activities and 
accomplishments. The following were highlighted: 
 Launched affordable learning materials initiative (including OER materials) 
 Moved early/middle college concept beyond pilot status 
 P-TECH proposal submitted to Commonwealth 

16



 

 Lenfest proposal 
 Increased faculty use of Canvas to more than 90% 
 Launched Institute for Community Engagement & Civic Leadership with more 

than 200 student volunteers; over 30 community partners; over 30 community 
events 

 Preliminary work for record label 
 Diversity Fellowship revised and Diversity Innovation Lab developed 
 Accessibility Plan approved; new Diversity Plan drafted, new policies 
 Technology upgrades with over 70% of classrooms technology enabled 
 Created & started assessment of three active learning classrooms 
 Online enrollment up over 7% 
 Increased dual enrollment by 10% 
 Represented College in absence of President 
 
Dr. Rényi asked what role the Student Outcomes Committee could play in relation to 
innovation, middle college, etc. Dr. Gay indicated that support is helpful. 
 

(d) Pennsylvania State System of Higher Education Strategic System Review 
 
The Committee discussed the report from the National Center for Higher Education 
Management Systems (NCHEMS). Dr. Rényi noted that NCHEMS recommended 
comprehensive oversight of all public higher education across the Commonwealth. It 
is recommended that this include community colleges (although these were not 
included in interviews done by the group). It is also noteworthy that adult students 
were cited as the biggest untapped resource, especially those with some or no college. 
This is an important population for the College. A possible next step is for the group 
to create a white paper to be taken to the legislature. This would help garner support 
for the idea that community colleges are part of the answer, especially in regard to the 
underserved adult student population. The PA Commission for Community Colleges 
is meeting in November; Dr. Rényi would like to attend. Dr. Generals said that 
having trustees advocate the College as being part of the solution is helpful. The 
College will know more after the November meeting about how the Committee can 
provide support. 
 

 
(e) New Business 

 
There were no new business topics to discuss. 

 
 
 Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Student Outcomes Committee of the Board is scheduled for 
October 5, 2017 at 1:30 p.m. in Conference Room M2-34. 
 
 
 

17



 

 
 
 
 

Attachments:  
Minutes of June 1, 2017 
Program Audit Follow-Up Report: Photographic Imaging Curriculum 
Office of Strategic Initiatives and Chief of Staff Report 
Pennsylvania State System of Higher Education Strategic System Review 
 
 

18



 

STUDENT OUTCOMES COMMITTEE OF THE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
MINUTES 

 
Thursday, June 1, 2017 

1:30 p.m. 
Conference Room M2-34 

 
Presiding:  Dr. Rényi 
 
Present:  Mr. Armbrister, Ms. de Fries, Ms. Fulmore-Townsend (via phone), Dr. Gay, Dr. 

Generals, Dr. Hirsch, Ms. McPherson, Dr. Roberts 
 
Guests: Mr. Acosta-Morales, Ms. Dunston, Mr. Spielberg, Dr. Sweet 
 
 (1) Executive Session 
 

There were no agenda items for the Executive Session. 
 
(2) Public Session 
 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of May 4, 2017 
 
The minutes were accepted unanimously.  

 
(b) Academic Program Review: Liberal Arts A.A. Degree 

 
Ms. Dunston addressed the findings from the Liberal Arts A.A. academic program 
review. One finding related to retention. Currently 40% of Liberal Arts students leave 
with fewer than 12 credits or a GPA lower than 2.0. To address this, the program will 
decide on a measure to track students and learn why they move into and out of the 
program. The program is undergoing change. There are currently about 2,500 
students, down 40% from five years ago. The enrollment drop is partly due to new 
program availability, such as English and Psychology. Students entering those new 
programs formerly would have enrolled in Liberal Arts. Additionally, the College’s 
enrollment has declined in general. The program will evaluate examining the effect 
on enrollment and retention of the new First Year Experience (FYE) course. In FYE 
101 students articulate their goals and create an educational plan, activities designed 
to improve retention.  

 
Two other findings concerned increasing faculty engagement and improving 
assessment. The program’s curriculum revisions have already stimulated changes in 
its assessments. The program will present a full cycle of assessment, including 
looking at faculty engagement, technology, and new course requirements.  
 

19



 

Mr. Acosta-Morales, the Department Head of History, Philosophy, and Religious 
Studies, which houses the Liberal Arts program, described how the program is 
already addressing the findings, especially as a result of increased faculty engagement 
leads to more thorough and effective assessment. Mr. Acosta-Morales reported that 
the faculty are looking forward to the data from the new FYE course. In general, the 
Guided Pathways work should improve retention. Proactive advisement of students, 
taking the FYE course within the first 12 credits, and helping students determine their 
academic goals earlier (in the FYE course) should significantly improve retention. 
The program recently refined the courses that are recommended. This not only 
provides guidance to students, but also enables them to see connections between 
courses and how the recommended courses help them progress.  
 
Mr. Armbrister asked about the broad array of concentrations on the curriculum map. 
Mr. Acosta-Morales explained that Liberal Arts is a general  major, which should 
allow students to have experiences with courses that fit an array of different interests. 
Advisors guide student choices. Dr. Rényi commented that this major stems from 
General Studies and asked if all courses would be accepted as liberal arts 
requirements upon transfer. Mr. Acosta-Morales could not say that all courses are 
accepted at every institution as having fulfilled liberal education requirements. Dr. 
Generals added that schools will probably accept the credits and that the role the 
credits fill might vary; PASSCHE schools generally do accept them for liberal 
education requirements. An attempt was made to structure the program so that if 
students complete the degree, they should fulfill the general education distribution at 
a transfer institution. Ms. Dunston explained that the requirements of the top transfer 
institutions were reviewed and they did vary. Dr. Rényi noted the importance of 
advising to help students determine early to which institution they will transfer; Dr. 
Generals attested to the advisors’ ability to do so. Dr. Sweet explained that a student 
learning outcome of the FYE course is for students to complete academic and career 
plans; they therefore consider transfer institutions and course sequencing as part of 
this. As a consequence, some students might find a more specific major to meet their 
goals. Dr. Hirsch described how within the blocks in the curriculum, students do have 
some flexibility with courses so they can take into account transfer requirements. Mr. 
Acosta-Morales said this was part of the ongoing curriculum revision process. . 
 
Dr. Sweet commented that only since last summer has the program resided in the 
History, Philosophy, and Religious Studies department and that Mr. Acosta-Morales’ 
input has been beneficial to the program.  

 
Action: The Student Outcomes Committee unanimously recommends that the 
Board of Trustees accept the program review with approval for five years.  The 
program should submit a follow-up report to the Committee within one year to 
address the evaluation of the FYE course and its effect on retention, the 
developmental education map, and retention outcomes. 

 
 
 

20



 

(c) Program Audit Follow up Report – Photographic Imaging 
 

At the Student Outcomes Committee meeting in September 2016, the Committee 
requested that the Photographic Imaging A.A.S. program submit an update report to 
provide more data regarding student outcomes. Dr. Sweet described how the program 
has initiated many new activities to increase enrollment, such as streamlining the 
curriculum (from 63 to 60 credits), adding new courses, and renewing focus on 
enrolling students in the proficiency certificate program. As a result, 35 students have 
signed up for the Digital Imaging PC program. There were six graduates from the 
Photographic Imaging program in 2016, with 5 in 2017; and fewer in the Digital 
Imaging PC program.  
 
The program has made enhancements to the student experience. Faculty have been 
doing as much as they can to increase the program’s profile and encourage students to 
seek out this option. Mr. Spielberg explained how the College has had photography 
courses since it was founded. The program focuses on commercial photography, with 
the goal of preparing students for a career. Since video is part of photography 
training, both photography and video are taught in the program. If students are 
especially proficient in video, they are encouraged to explore the Digital Video 
Production program. Faculty also encourage students who would not be able to make 
a living as photographers to find a different program in which they can be successful. 
These discussions typically occur in lower-level courses, which results in a high 
attrition rate from these lower-level classes. 
 
Dr. Rényi commented that the internship with the Inquirer is fabulous. Mr. Spielberg 
said that the Inquirer and local TV stations used to only take a Community College of 
Philadelphia student every 3-4 years, but now internship positions regularly go to our 
students. Dr. Rényi noted that the committee is very impressed with what the program 
has accomplished. 

 
Action: The Student Outcomes Committee agreed to defer action of the Program 
until the September Committee meeting at which time Drs. General and Hirsch 
will provide more information. 
 

 
(d) New Business 

 
There were no new business topics to discuss 

 
 
 Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Student Outcomes Committee of the Board is scheduled for 
September 7, 2017 at 1:30 p.m. in Conference Room M2-34. 
 
 
 

21



 

 
 
 
 

Attachments:  
Minutes of May 4, 2017 
Academic Program Review: Liberal Arts A.A. Degree 
Program Audit Follow-Up Report: Photographic Imaging Curriculum 
Liberal Arts Curriculum Map 
Academic Pathways 

22



	

Photographic	Imaging	Program,	AAS	
Audit	Update	
June	1,	2017	

	
	
Student	Outcomes:	
	

1. Enrollment	averaged	54	majors	for	2016‐2017.	
2. Graduates:	5	Photographic	Imaging	AAS	and	4	Digital	Imaging	PC.		
3. Course	assessment	shows	increased	student	success	at	final	portfolio	presentation	for	

PHOT	299.	Faculty	have	raised	the	benchmark	from	70%	to	75%.	
	
	

Enrollment 
Fall 
2011 

Spring 
2012 

Fall 
2012 

Spring 
2013 

Fall 
2013 

Spring 
2014 

Fall 
2014 

Spring 
2015 

Fall 
2015 

Spring 
2016 

Fall 
2016

Photographic 
Imaging  75  76  78  68  83  78  69  66  52  58  50 
Digital 
Imaging        1  1  1  2  2  2  2  1  1 

             

Graduation  2008  2009  2010  2011 2012 2013 2014  2015 2016  2017   

Photographic 
Imaging  6  3  6  5  4  3  4  3  6  5   
Digital 
Imaging              1  6  29  5  13  4   

	

Program Name 

F15 
New 

Students  

Returning 
Students 

All 
Students

F16 
New 

Students 

Returning 
Students  

All 
Students

      Photographic Imaging  18  34  52    16         34    50 

     Digital Image Prof. Cert   0  1  1  0         1     1 

	
	
	
Program	Enhancements	to	Improve	Retention,	Progression,	and	Graduation	
	
1. Revised	Photographic	Imaging	curriculum:		

 Lowered	required	credits	from	63	to	60	credits;	
 Aligned	with	Guided	Pathways	for	electives;	
 Eliminated	some	pre‐requisites	to	increase	retention;		
 Created	2	new	courses,	PHOT	105	Intro	Digital	Photo	and	PHOT	113	Digital	Technology,	

Art,	and	Culture	for	Fall	17.	

23



	

	
2. Increased	recruitment	through	Veterans	Resource	Center	by	having	PHOT211	students	create	

a	public	service	promo	video	for	the	center.	
	
3. Increased	number	of	students	in	Photo	Imaging	Proficiency	Certificate	through	persistent	

promotion	in	classrooms	to	35	(2017).	
	
4. Increased	the	number	of	students	receiving	sponsored	Academic	Awards	from	6	(2016)	to	12	

(2017).	
	
5. In	discussion	with	University	of	the	Arts	and	Temple	to	develop	transfer	agreements.	
	
6. Created	internship	program	within	PHOT	217	Digital	Photojournalism,	and	with	the	

cooperation	of	Advisory	Board	members.	Students	are	mentored	by	photographers	at	The	
Philadelphia	Inquirer.	Four	graduates	have	been	invited	to	join	the	staff	call	list.	
	

7. Student	response	to	department	questionnaire	shows	high	degree	of	satisfaction	with	course	
content	and	expected	skills.	Area	of	concern:	offering	more	sections	in	different	time	slots	to	
accommodate	student	work	schedules.	
	

Enhancing	the	Student	Experience	
 Annual	Photo	Student	Show	in	the	Rotunda	in	March.	
 Student	Photo	Print	Sale	in	Bonnell	Lobby	set	for	December.	
 Off	campus	Photo	Friday	monthly	group	shoot.	
 Presentations	by	professional	photographers,	filmmakers	and	equipment	vendors.	
 Professionals	provide	student	mock	job	interviews	at	final	Advisory	Board	meeting.	
 PHOT	211	requires	group	community	service	through	photo	and	video	services.	
 Extensive	student	work	on	permanent	display	in	administrative	offices	in	the	Mint	and	

Bonnell	Buildings.	
	
Assessment	

 A	FT	faculty	member	has	been	designated	as	assessment	liaison.	
 Revised	assessment	plan	in	place	to	examine	different	PLOs	each	semester.	
 Assessment	progress	discussion	now	included	in	all	faculty	meetings.	

	
Accreditation	
The	Department	of	Photographic	Imaging	meets	all	ASMP	(American	Society	of	Media	
Photographers)	and	NPPA	(National	Press	Photographers	of	America)	standards	for	image	quality,	
marketing	and	ethics	training.	

24



JG	Annual	Report	2017	  

Community College of Philadelphia 

Office of Strategic Initiatives and Chief of Staff 

2016 - 2017 

Goal I:  Completed College Strategic Plan and initiated Institutional Effectiveness Committee 

for integrated planning  

Goal II:  Provided support for the Strategic Plan Pillars 

1. Student Success 

 Launched affordable learning materials initiative  

 Increase faculty use of Canvas to >90% 

 Provided research support for student success initiatives  

 Moved early/middle college concept beyond pilot status 

 Early Scholar program initiated  

 P‐TECH proposal submitted to Commonwealth 

 Lenfest proposal 

2. Workforce development 

 Collaborated to support hybrid CDA 

 Hosted City of Philadelphia job fair 

 Research support for National Community College Benchmark Project’s 

Workforce Training Benchmark Survey 

3. Internal/External Relations 

 Launched Institute for Community Engagement & Civic Leadership with > 200 

student volunteers; > 30 community partners; > 30 community events 

 Introduced 3 new CCPTV programs 

 Preliminary work for record label  

 Diversity Fellowship revised and Diversity Innovation Lab developed 

 Creation of Diversity Certificate  

 Accessibility Plan approved; new Diversity Plan drafted, new policies 

4. World‐class Facilities 

 Technology upgrades >70% of classrooms technology enabled. 

 Created & started assessment of 3 active learning classrooms 

5. Fiscal Sustainability 

 Added programs available online:  Psychology, Liberal Arts, Liberal Arts‐Social 

Behavioral Science, Geographic Information Systems proficiency certificate, 

Accounting Paraprofessional proficiency certificate (online enrollment up >7%) 

 Increased dual enrollment > 10% 

25



JG	Annual	Report	2017	  

Goal III:  Worked to ensure compliance with external standards 

1. Completed 100% of external reports on time  

Additional activities: 

1. Represented College in absence of President 

 Goldman Sachs 10KSB graduation August 2016 – Congratulatory comments 

 Voter Registration Event, September 2016 – Welcome & Comments 

 Latino/a Heritage Luncheon, October 2016 - Welcome 

 School District of Philadelphia FAFSA launch, October 2016 - Comments 

 Testimony before City Council (CTE), October 2016 and February 2017 

 Department of Education ITT conference call, October 2016 

 PA Commission for Community Colleges Southeast Regional Trustees Meeting, 
Delaware County Community College, November 2016 

 Nursing Student Development Day, November 2016 - Welcome 

 PA Department of Education – ESSA Forum, January 2017 – Welcome 
 

2. College support 

 Designed and co-facilitated extended cabinet retreat on 4DX (August 2016) 

 Facilitated Extended Cabinet meeting in absence of President 

 Back-up for EthicsPoint, public comment at Board meetings 

 Chair for 10KSB executive director search 

 Wrote & submitted successful nomination for Diversity Award for David Thomas 

 Liaison for Middle States Commission on Higher Education 
 

3. Community Engagement 

 Dissertation Committee, East Stroudsburg University 

 Running Start Committee – City of Philadelphia (Co-Chair) 

 Interim House (Chair) 

 Philadelphia Academies Inc. Board (Executive Committee) 

 Philadelphia Education Fund Board 

 Public Health Management Corporation Board 

 Chestnut Hill College Academic Advisory Committee 

 PA ACE Women’s Network – Executive Committee 
 

 

 

26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



MEETING OF THE REAL ESTATE COMMITTEE 
OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Community College of Philadelphia  
Friday, September 15, 2017 – 11:00 A.M. 

 
Present: Lydia Hernández Vélez, Esq. (Chair), presiding; Mr. Curtis Hess (via 

Teleconference), Mr. Jeremiah J. White, Jr. (via Teleconference), Mr. Jim Tucker 
(via Teleconference), Dr. Donald Generals, Mr. Jacob Eapen, Victoria Zellers, 
Esq. and Mr. Gary Bixby 

 
 

AGENDA – PUBLIC SESSION 
 

(1) Approval of the College’s Facilities Master Plan (Action Item): 
 

Mr. Eapen stated that the Facilities Master Plan was disseminated to the Board of 
Trustees and the Foundation Board.  Ms. Hernández Vélez requested if the Committee had any 
suggested changes to the Plan.  Committee members had no suggested changes to the draft 
Facilities Master Plan.  However, with regard to the handout that was given out to Committee 
members on the Order of Magnitude Cost Estimate, Mr. Hess asked if the soft costs were 
included in the total costs.  Mr. Eapen stated that it was hard cost of construction.  Mr. Curtis 
stated that the soft costs will be an additional 10 to 15%.  Mr. Curtis pointed out that for future 
facilities projects, an inflation factor should be built into the total costs. 

 
Action:  Mr. Martz moved and Ms. Hernández Vélez seconded the motion that the Real 

Estate Committee recommend that the final draft of the Facilities Master Plan be presented for 
action at the Board of Trustees meeting which is scheduled for October 5, 2017.  The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
(2) Update on Projects (Information Item): 

 
Mr. Eapen and Mr. Bixby provided an update on the following current and future 

projects.  A PowerPoint Presentation Slideshow was presented to the Committee.   
 
Mr. Eapen reported that the West Building Steps were completed except for the punch-

list items which are to be completed by the contractors.   
 
Mr. Bixby provided an overview on the Biology Lab renovations and stated that the 

renovations will be completed in three phases.  Mr. Eapen informed the Committee that the 
project was a PDE approved project with a projected cost of $7.0M. 

 
Mr. Eapen provided an overview of the Mint Step Project with an estimated cost of $1M.  

He noted that $620,000 will be received from the State.   
 
Mr. Eapen reported that staff is currently working on an RFP for the Architects for the 

Library and Learning Commons Renovations.  This project has an estimated start date of 
Spring/Summer 2018 and an estimated cost of $18M.   

 

81



Dr. Generals stated that the West Regional Center Expansion will be considered a 
“Destination Campus” focusing on the Auto Technology and other career-oriented programs, as 
well as workforce development programs.  Staff informed the Committee that the College will 
potentially receive about $12M in funding from RACP (Redevelopment Assistance Capital 
Program) subject to State approval.  The estimated starting date for the project is Summer 
2018 subject to funding being in place. 

 
Mr. Bixby reported that the Public Art Project is a work by Koryn Roldstadt and is titled 

Illuminated Growth.  She aspires to have the project complete and installed by Spring 2018. 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

JE/lm 

82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165


	tableofcontents10.5.17
	agenda 10.5.17
	9.7.17Proceedings
	9.7.17Minutes
	Grants & Gifts Oct'17
	September 7  2017 Student Outcomes Committee Minutes
	SOC minutes for 9-7-17 meeting 9-15-17
	SOC minutes for 6-1-17 meeting 7-25-17
	Photographic Imaging Audit Update 6.1.17 (1)
	Abbreviated 2017 Report(1) (1)
	DOC092517-001

	Real Estate Committee Meeting Minutes September 15, 2017
	9-28-17 Audit Committee Meeting Minutes wAttachments A, B & D-1
	DOC092917-007.pdf
	9-28-17 Audit Committee Meeting Minutes Attachments A, C & D.pdf




